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OSWER Directive #9841.IA 

Administrative Penalty Procedures. 
VOl. 54,N 93 

Tdesda:, May 6 .  1989 

AGENCY: Environmentd Protection Agency (EPA). 
DOC TYPE Rules and Regulations 
CFR: 40CFR Part 22 
NUMBER: FRL-3464-2 

ACTION: Interim tinal rule 

SUMMARY EPA is today promulgating an interim final rule establishing procedures for the 

administrative asssameat of civil paultiesunder (I) section 109 of the Comprehaive 

Environmental Response,Compematbn, and Liability Act (CERCLA). 42U.S.C. 9601 U W.; 

as amended by the SupeaYid Ammdmenta and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986.Pub. L. NO. 

99499. for violations of p d i n s  specified in seetion 109 of CERCLA. includii failins to 
rwrt  releasesof hrzardau subspnca. and (2) section 325 of the EmergFcy PI- and 
Community Right-Tc-Know Act (EPCRA). 42U.S.C. 11001et seq., for violations of provisions 
specified in section 325 of EpcRA. The d e  providesthattheadministrative awxment  of 
CERCLA s&n 109 pedties and EPCRA seetion 325 penalties will be g o v d  by 
EPA's Consolidated Rules of Practice Govaning the Administrative Assessment of Civil 
Penalties and by supplawatll rules dating specifically to penalty assessments under section 109 of 
CERCLA and section 325of EPCRA.EPA is takingthii&on in response to ameadments to 
CERCLA made by SARA, which aufhorizethe Resident to assess administrative peaaltiar for 
Certainviolationsof CERCLA ad which authorize the Administrator of EPA to BsJess 

administrative penalties for violations of EFCRA. The authority granted to ad- 've 
penalties was effeaive upon the date of enactment of SARA, which was October 17.1986. 
DATES: Comments on this intaim final rule must be submitted on or before July 17. 1989.This 
interim final rule is effeaive on May 16,1989. and governs all proceedings for the administrative 
assegtmeatof a civil penalty under section I 0 9  of CERCLA or section 325 of EPCRA for which an 
administrative complaint is filed &exMay 16.1989. EPA willusethii rule as guidance for 
conducting these p t m x e d i i  prior to the date it becomes effective on an interim fiaal Mi. 
ADDRFS",: Persons may mail comments on this interim fural rule to Sandra Comwns.mceof 
Enbrcement and Compliance M o n ~ x i n g ,Hazardous Waste Division (LE-WS),  Room 3219L. 
U.S.Environmental Pnwsetion Agency. 401 M S t r e  SW..Washington,DC 20460. Persons may 
inspect comments at that add-. 
FOM FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Sandra Connom, Office of Enforcement and 
COmplhce Monitoring, HazardousWaste Division (LE-134s). U.S.Environmental Protection 
Agency. 401 M SUCH SW.,W a s h i n ,  DC 20460,202-382-3110. 
-ARY INFORMATION 
StatutOrp Background 

October 17. 1986. the Superhrnd Amendment?,ud Reauthorization Act (SARA). Jf 1986. 
Pub. L. No. 99499. was enaaed. Title I of SARA amebdcd the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response,Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA), 42 U.S.C. 9601 qseq. ,  by 
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revising'sdon 109, 42 U.S.C. 9609, which authorizes the President to assess administrative 
pe@ties for Violations of specified provisioy of LERCLA. Title Ill of SARA is the Emergency 

, . 	 Piming and Community Right+-Know Act of.1986 (EPCRA). Section 325(b) of EPCRA. 42 
L'3.C. 11045(b), auth@rizethe Adminiitrator of EPA to assess administrrive penalties tor 

8 . 

violations 01 mergen.;, notification'under seaion 304 f 6pCRA. Section 325(c) of EPCRA 
. .author : .~~the Administrator of EPA to assess adminir+i.rivepenalties for reporting ,violations under. 

sectioi A. 311. 312, 313, 322 or 323 of EPCRA. S e c t i - .  325(d) of EPCRA authorizes the 
Administrator.of EPA to ask gdmifistrative penalties ,for frivolous trade secret claims made 

i . .  in violation of section 322 of EPCRA. , . ,  

Section 109 and section 325@) established Go -'classp'- of administrative penalties. 
which differ with respect to allowable procedure + maximum assessment. Ibe provisioits for 
Class,I penalties allow for a niaximum penalty of $25,600 per violation and the Respondent ' . 

must be provided notice and an opportunity for hearing. Ibe p6visions for Class h'penalti& ' . 

authorize a maximum penalty 'of '  $25,000 day for each day duripg whid the violation 
,continuesand a maximum penalty of $75,000per day k r  each day during which the violation 
continues for a & ~ ~ n dor subsequent violation and are explicitly made subjmto the requirements of 
the 'Administrative Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C. 554, 556:Clss II proceedings are similar 
'tmadministrative adjudicatory proeeedings employ+ by, the Agency und& other environmental. 
statutes, which are subject to section 554 of the APA. 

. . 

Sections 325 (c) and (d) of EPCRA are silent ='to the type'ofadminisdDtive hearing 
procedures to be employedfortheassessmentofpenalties Under these sections. Section 
325(c)(1) authorizes a maximum penalty' of 425.000 per day for each,+y during which the 

, 	 violation continues and section 325(c)(2) authorizes a miximum of $10,000 per day for each day 
during which the violation continues. The penalties under section.325(c) may be Bssessed on a daily 
basis. Section 325(d) of EPCRA authorizes a penalty'of SZ5,oOO per frivoloq trade secret claim. 

under m i o n  109(a) of CERCLA, a Class I penalty requires o n ~ ynotice and opportunity for , . 

hearing. A ClacS II'penalty uder section 109@) of CERCLA may be assessed by the President 
1 through an order issued after opportunity for a he+ng on the record @ sccor&n& with section 554 

I of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA), 5 U.S.C. 554. Ibe authority to p ~ s e s s  penalties 
unb& I CERCLA section 109 has been delegated to EPA (see Executive Order 12580 of January 23, 
1987.52 FR 2923 (J~IIUW 29, i9'87). 

Class I and Clak II civil penalties under section 109 may be assessed for (1) a violation of &e . . 
emergency release notification.requirementsof section 103 (a) or (b); '0)a violation of section 
103(d)(2) (relating to recordkeeping); (3) a violation of the requirements of section 108, the 
regulations'issued under section 108, or with any denial or'detention,order under section 108 
(relating b.financial responsibility); (4) a violation of an order under section 122(d)(3) (relating to ' 

settlement agreements for action under section 1w)j;or (5) any failure or r e u  referred to in 
section 1220) (relating t6 violations of administrative orders, eonsent decrees, or agreements with 

. federal faci1i:ies under:sction 120). 
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, .  

Under section 325@)(2) ofEPCv;a Class n penalty is asses.yd and collected by the 
Administrator in the'samemnhnei. and subjea (0 the same provisio&;{$y in $e case of civil 
penalties sssessed aad colleaed under section 16 of the .Toxic Substanwj C o m l  A a ,  ISU.S.C. 

~ 

2615. Thosepenalties are ppsesred by an order hued nfta oppormnity'fora hearing on the record 
in pcco lance wiih section 554 of the APA. A ch  I pdt,under seUion'325@)(1)of EPPD 
requirts oc .,! notice and opportunity for a hearing. ', 

Under d o n  325(c)(4) of EPCRA, the Administrator may assess by administrative order 
any civil penalty for which a person is liable under section 325(c). Under seaion 325(c)(1). a penalty 
of not more than $25,000for each violation may be dfor violations of the right-to-loow 
reporting requirements under sedions 312 or 313 ofEPCRA.Under section 325(c)(2), a penalty 
of not more than $10,000 for each viohtion may b e d for vh~ationsof seaion 311 or 
323@) requirements or for failure to furnirh informaion under sectbo 322(a)(2). For purposes of 
section 325(c), each day a violation ~atinua;onstitutesasq violation. under section. .
325(d) of EPCRA. the AdministrPtor maY-bY- 've order a pennlty of $25,000 per 
frivolous trade se~etclaim made under section 322(dX4).-

Both sections 109aad 325 authorize EPA to issuesupoeaurto obtaintheaaerdaaceaad 
testimony ofwitnessar and the produdion ofdocum&. A person subject to an order assessing a 
Class n penalty undm seaion 109 may seek judicial review ofthe order with the appropriate 
united Stam court of Appeals. A person subject to an orda urressing a Class I peaolty under 
section 109 or a peaalty uadsr section325 m y  seek judicial review of me ordm with the appropriate 
united stotes District court. 

Desaipt iondFldRule 
This interim final rule applies f o d  APA heating procedurrJ at this timeto all EPA 

administrative penalty uctboritiar under CERCLA section 109 and EPCRA section 325. The 
Agency is currently considering developing procedures for sssessing Class I pedties that would be 
less f o d  than the Pan 22 procedures and that arould apply to pensltiea d e r  seaion l09(a)(t) 
of CERCLA. seaion 325@Xl)of E R A ,  seaion 3Wd) ofEPCRA, and to ccltlincivil p a l t i e s  
under section 325(c) ofEPCRA. 

EPA promulgated Consolidated Rules of PraUice Governing t h e A m've 
~gpesstnemofCivil P d t i e s  and RevuutiOn or Susparsionof Parnits at 40 CFR Part 22. 
Those rules govm the administrative urressment of Peaplties under other StSMesadministered by 
EPA subiect to the adjudicatory hearing requirements of the APA or for which EPA has 
determined such procedures are appropriate. The Comlidazd Rules are designed to provide a 
common set of procedural rules for Certnin ofEPA's administrative pennlty programs. in order 
to reduce pspemork. inmnsistei~~y.and the burden on the regulsted community. See 45 FR 
24360 (April 9. 1980). 

Under the Consolidated Rules of Practice, EVA will assess CERCLA section 109 penalties 
and EPCRA section 325 penalties by an order issued after opportunity for a hearing on the record. 
EPA has concluded that the Consolidated Rules should oe fdlowed, on an interim final basis, as 
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the procedural framework to assess penalties under section 109 of CERCLA and section 325 of 
EPCRA. Accordingly, this interim final rule provides that the Consolidated Rules will govern 
adjudicatory proceedings for the asses-nent of civil administrativepenalties under section 109 of 
CERCLA and section 325 of EPCRA. 

' ,In addi-'m, as part of today's r u l d i n g ,  EPA is, omulgating, on an interh final: basis, 
supplement to the Consolidated Rules which apply to 1 ERCLA section , IC9 and EPCRA 
section 325' penalty procedures. The supplemental- ' rule is necessary because of requirements 
specific to provisions of the two statutes. The supplemental rules ccditj subpoena requirements 
q d  the procedures for seekingjudicial review of penalty assessments. and describe certain 
procedures for payment and co~~ectionof pemIti& assessed. 

EPA requkts comments on'any of the above matters. .~ . .  

Interim Flnal Rule 
EPA is issuing the rule on an interim final basis pursuant to 5 U.S.C. 553@) (A) and (B), which 

allows the issk-ce of rules.without prior notice and comment where the des concern agency 
practice or procedure or where the Agency finds for good cause .that prior notice and 
ukment  is UMV. Both of these criteria are m a  by these rules. The statutes specifically 
identify the type of hearing to be acqrded for assessm& of Class Il penalties, i.c: formal 
adjudications uader sedion 554 of the APA. AlrJm@ other sections are silent as to the type 
of procedure? or specifically authorize a less formal set of procedures, the Agency has elected to 
apply the formal sdjudicationa requiremptltsto all penalty adions at this time. EPA has long-
established regulations implementing section 554 hearings for civil penalty assessment under . . 
several other environmental statutes. The regulations, codified at 40CFR Part 22. wire promulgated 

.. . 	 afterl riotice and opportunityto comment. Becauwthe stltute leaves ' l ide  discrdon with respect 
to the type of procedure to be ~ffordedfor C I ~  and this rule mates we~~-estab~ishedn ~ i o t i o n a  
rulesproviding full adjudicatory procedures applicable to all pedtyproceglings under 
section IC9 of CERCLA rad'section 325 of EPCRA, EPA believes that notice and comment 
on this rule is "U~eceSSary"under section 553 of the APA. 

Furthermore. use of the Cowlidated Rules on an interim basis will facilitate EPA beginning. .prompt implementation of the admmstrative penalty authority, using uniform procedures while 
satisjing the procedural and substantive requirements established by CERCLA and EPCRA. EPA is, 
however, . d i n g  this rule 'interim final' in order to allow an opportunity for public comment and a 
revision of the final rule as necesspry in the future based on public comments. 

The interim final rule is effective upon publication in the Federal Register. The Consolidated 
Rules of Practice will govern proceedis  for the assessment of administrative @ties under section 
109 of CERCLA and section 325 of EPCRA for which a complaint is filed after that date. The 
proposed interim final rule will be used by EPA as guidance prior to that dace. 
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. .  

a. ir.:.Regulatory W M U t y  w .  , .i :&q:
.Pursuit to the Regulato&'Flexibility Act, 5 U.S.C.601 througb.612, whenever an psfflcy is 

, required to publish a general notice. of rulemaking for h y  proposed or final rule, it.must prepare 
and make a.:-ilable for public comeat ,  a regvlatory lexihility analysis which describes the 
impact of e. rule pL . a d 1  entities <i.c., small ' awes, small orgnnizotioh~.h : s m d l  

'governmentz jurisdictions). The Administrator may cer..fy, however, that the rule will not have a 
I
significant economic impoa on' a substantial numbex of S ~ entities. ~nsuch circum3tances, a .  

regulatory flexibility analysis i s  wt required. . .  

I h e  expectbd impact of the rule on small entities is negligible. The rule codifies already 
existing statutory provisions and is procedural. Thus, it does not impose additiod regulatory 
requiremeam on d l entities. 

Accordingly, I h&&y d f y  rhat these regulations will not have a significant impact on a 
substantial numbex of emall eatitis. These regulstiolul. therefore, do not require a regulatory 
flexibility analysis.-
Exmtive orda No. 12291 

Under Executive Order 12291, the Agency must judge whether a regulation is 'major' and thus 
subject to the requirement to prepare a Regulatory Impact Analysis. The notice published today is 
Mt major beuuse ibe ruie will not d t in ao effd on the economy of $100 million or more, will 
not result in i n c r d  w or prices. will not have significant advase effecta on competition, 
employment. inveabwnt. productivity, and innovation. and will not signifiumly divupt domestic 
or export markets. Therefore. the Agency has IK# preppred a Re@atory lmpodAollyais undw the 
Executive Order. 

This regulation was submitted to the Oftice of M a ~ g mand higa(Om)for review as 
required by Executive order No. 12291. 

. .  
PpperWorL-Aet 

These Wi final rules donotconrainanyinformationcolleaionrequirements subject to 
OMB review under the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1980 (44U.S.C. 3501 ct SCq.). 

Ust of S u b j d  in 40CFR put 22 
Administrative practice and procedures, Enviroamcntnl protection, E x t r d y  hazardous 

substances, Hazardous chemicals, Hazardm substances, Hazardous wastes. P d t i e s .  Superfund. 
Title 111 of SARA. 
Dated:May 8, 1909. 

William K. ReiUy, 
Administrator. .....-

For the reafons Jet out in the preamble, and under aut'o&.ofsection 109 of the Compreheasive 
Environmental Response. Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as mended. 42 U.S.C. %09, 

.~ ..  
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and section325 of the Emergency Planmng and Community Right-to-Kmw Act of 1986 (EPCRA), 
42 U.S.C. 11045, and Executive Order 12580, Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations is 
amended on an interim basis effective on May 16. 1989 a follows: 

' PAR?U-[AMEruDED] 
1. l l ie  Authority ciration for Part 22 h revised to read as follows: 
Authority: I5U.S.C. sec. 2615; 42 U.S.C. sea. 7545 and 7601; 7U.S.C. sea. 136(1) and (m); 33 
U.S.C. s a .  1319, 141s and 1418; 42 U.S.C. sea.p912.6928. and 6991(e); 42 U.S.C. sec. 9609; 
42 U.S.C. sec. 11045. 

2. Seaion 22.01 is smslded by r e v i s i  paragrapb (aX6) and by S d d i  paragraphs (a)(? and (a)@) 
to read as follows: 

sec. 22.01 scope of ulcsc Nlm. 

(a) 

(6) Tbe -of MYClass U peaalty d e r  section 309Os(e)of the Clean Wpta Act (33 
U.S.C. 1319b)); , 

(7) The xsesmmtofmydminiseatr've peaslty under section 109 of the Comprcbeasive 
E n v i m d  Response, cbqmwbon, and Liabiiity Act of I%), BS purerdrd (42 U.S.C. 9609); 

(8) The aawmea~of any admiitrative penalty under section 325 of the Emergency Planning 
and Comm~nityRi~t-To-KnoWAct of 1986 (EPCRA) (42 U.S.C. 11045). 

3. Add a new Sec. 22.39, to read as follows: 

s& 2239 d prsetiee governing tbe administrntive psserrsment or 
administrative plvlrias lmds tiajioo 109 d theComprebedve Enrironmentnl 
Rpsponne, km,Ud d 1980, M OIlWded. 

(a) Scope of rhese S~@+%&?nfd rules. T h e e  Supplemental rules of practice shall govern, in 
conjunction with the p r d i  Consolidated Rules of Practice (40 CFR Part 22). administrative 
proceedings for the assessment of any civil penalty under section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Enviroxmntal Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (42 U.S.C. 9609). 
Where inconsistencies exist w e e n  these Supplemffltal rules and the Consolidated Rules (Sees. 
22.01 through 22.32). these Supplemntal desshall apply. 

(b) S-w.  (1) The atteadvlceandtestimonyofwimessesortheproduction of relevant 
papers, books, and docurmasmay be required by subweam. The Residii offiea may %ant a 
request for a subpoenaupon a showing of (i) the giowd and necessity therefor. and (ii) b e  
materiality and relevancy of the evidence to be adduced. Requests for the production of documents .shall describe the evidence sought as specifically as practicable. 
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(2 )  Subpoenas shall be served in accordance with Sec. 22.05@)(1) of the Consolidated Rules of 
Practice. 

. I ,  ). i 

(3) wimeasea summoned before the ~ e s i d iotficer be ;aid the ww fee  and mileage 
that are paid wimesseS in the COUM of the United States. Fees dull be paid by the nvty at 
whose in! ace the iitness apw where a wme appears pmuant to a request initiated by the 
Pres ling Miter, fees chaU k I uu by the Age y. 

(c) Judiclol review. Any person who requested a hearing with respect to a Class U civil penalty 
under section 109 of CERCLA and who is the recipient of a final order ppsessing a civil penalty 
may tile a petition for judicial review of such or& with the United S u m  Cwn of Appeals for the 
Dishict of Columbia or for any other circuit in which such pason r e a h  or &ansa& business. 
Any person who requested a hearing with rsspeet to a Clpss I civil purslty uader section 109 of 
CERCLA and who is the recipieat of a final order ppsessing the civil peaalty may file a petition 
for judicial review of such order with the appropriate d d c t  CWR of thc United Seuar. AI1 
petitions must be filed within 30days of the date the order making the asesmea was issued.-

(d) Payment of civil penalty assessed. Payment of civil peaaltiea finally asmsed by the 
Regional Administrator shall be made by fonvardihg a cashier's check. payable to the 'EPA. 
Hazardous Substonees Superhrnd." in the m u n t  d,and noting the case tide and dock& 
number. to the appropriate regional Superlid Loclrbox Depository. Notice of paymeat must be 
sent by Respondent to the Hearing Clerk for inclusionUI part of the pdminiswl've record for the 
proceeding in which the civil penalty was d.Interest on overdue payme& shall be collected 
pursuant to the Debt ColleaiOn Aa, 37 U.S.C. 3717. 

4. A& a new ~ec.22.40. to read UI f~l~ows: . . 

Set. 22.40 Supplemslltnl rules of p R d i a g ~ v e m i n g t h e a d m i n W d v e . e t  of 
administrStive lmbakh under Seerion Usdtbe Pbwrgmcy Phning Md ccmmunity Right-To-
Know Act of 1986 (EpcRA). 

(a) Smpc of these SupplemiUd Rules. These S u p p l d  rules of pra~iceshall govern, in 
conjunction with the preceding Consolidated Rules of F'raaice (40CFR P u t  22). dminiskative 
proceedings for the assessment of any civil penalty .inder section325 for violations of the 
Emergency Planning' and Community Right-To-Kmw Act of 1986 (EPCRA). Where 
inconsistenciesexist between these Sup@lementnl rules and the ConsolidatedRules. (Sa.22.01 
through 22.32) these Supplemental rules shall apply. 

0) SuqpocnaC. (I)  The ltteadpnce and testimony of witnesses or the production of relevant 
papers, books. and documents may be required by subpoena. Ihe Preaidhg Oflica may grant a 
request for a subpoena upon a showing of (i) ,the grouads and necessity therefore. and (ii) the 
materiality and relevancy of the evidence to be adduced. Request8 for the production of documents 
shall describe the evidence sought as specifically as practicable. 

-
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(2) Subpoenas shall be served in accordance'with'Sec. ZZ.M(b)(l) of the Consolidated Rules Of 
Practice. 

. .  , (3) YitnesseS summoned before the Presiding . Seer shdlbe paid the same fees ?+ milCX­
that are pa :witnkes in the courts of the United State Fees shall' be. paid by the Party at 
whose instau& the witness &pears.. m e t e  a wimess appear$ pursuant to request initiated by $e 
Presiding officer. f& shall be paid by the Agency. , . 

fcl Judicial redew. Any person ' against 'whom a civil &ty is a s s e e d  may seekjudicial 
, review imthe appropriate district court of the United States by filing a notice of appeal and by 

. ,
S~ultaaeouslyseading a copy of such notice by &tied mail to the Administrator. The notice mUSt 
be filed within 30days of the date the order making such assessment was hued. The 
AdminiPuabr shall. promptly file & such court .s certifiedoopy I,; GL.record upon which sucb 
violation was found or such oenalty imposed. 
. . I . ,  , 

.. (iij~ - ~ r , c o ~ e a i o iof civil p d y .  If any person fails to pay an ' assessment of a 
, ' ' civil penalty a& it has become a final and unappealable order or after the appropriate court 

. ,has entered thnl judgment ' in favor of the United S&, the Administrator may request the 
Amrney General of the United Stares to institute a civil action in an appropriate district court of, 
the United States to collect the penalty, and such ~ court shall have jurisdiction to hear A d  decide any 
such action. In hearing such action. the court shall have authority to review the violation and the 
assesSmeat of the civil peaa~tyon the record. Intaesion oeetdue payments be co~~ectdd 
pursuant to the Debt CollectionAct, 37 U.S.C.. 3717. , . , 

RNTERNAL DATA: FR Doc. 89-11703; Filed 5-15-89; 8:45 a101 
BILLING CODE 6560-5044 . ' . . .. 
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